Public Document Pack

-
ﬂ%zg Agenda

Coventry City Council
Cabinet Member for Children and Young People

Time and Date
10.00 am on Tuesday, 11th July, 2023

Place
Diamond Room 5 - Council House

Public Business

=

Apologies
2. Declarations of Interests

3. Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)
(@) To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2022

(b) Matters Arising

4. Children's Services Comments, Compliments and Complaints Annual
Report 2021/22 (Pages 7 - 52)

Report of the Director of Childrens Services

5. Outstanding Issues Report

There are no outstanding issues

6. Any Other Business

To consider any other items of business which the Cabinet Member decides to
take as a matter of urgency because of the special circumstances involved.

Private Business
Nil

Julie Newman, Chief Legal Officer, Council House, Coventry
Monday, 3 July 2023

Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is
Usha Patel, Governance Services Email: usha.patel@coventry.gov.uk

Membership: Councillors A Jobbar (Deputy Cabinet Member) and P Seaman (Cabinet

Page 1



Member)
By invitation: Councillor J Lepoidevin

Public Access

Any member of the public who would like to attend the meeting in person is
encouraged to contact the officer below in advance of the meeting regarding
arrangements for public attendance. A guide to attending public meeting can be found
here: https://www.coventry.gov.uk/publicAttendanceMeetings

Usha Patel,
Governance Services
Email: usha.patel@coventry.gov.uk

Page 2


https://www.coventry.gov.uk/publicAttendanceMeetings

Agenda Iltem 3

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Cabinet Member for Children and Young People held at
10.00 am on Thursday, 24 March 2022

Present:
Members: Councillor P Seaman (Cabinet Member)
Councillor B Gittins (Deputy Cabinet Member)

Employees Present:

| Ahmed, Complaints Officer, Customer Services
J Gregg, Director of Children’s Services

U Patel, Law and Governance

R Sherwood, Customer Services

Apologies: Councillor P Male
Public Business
13. Declarations of Interests

There were no declarations of interest.
14. Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 October 2021 were agreed and signed as a
true record. There were no matters arising.

15. Children's Services Comments, Compliments and Complaints Annual Report
2020/21

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Director of Children’s Services
which presented the Children’s Services Comments, Compliments and Complaints
Annual Report 2020/21.

There is a statutory duty for the Council to have a system for receiving
representations by, or on behalf of, children who use the social care services they
provide or commission, and for the Council to produce an annual report about the
operation of the complaints.

The report, as attached at Appendix I, outlined the details of the comments,
compliments and complaints for children’s services in 2020/21. It highlighted the
themes that emerged from them and the learning and service improvements that
have resulted from the feedback received. Appendix Il detailed the Council’s
guidance for handling complaints.

The report indicated that between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021, there were 157
statutory and informal complaints received about children’s services. Of these, 141
were statutory complaints, 4 corporate complaints and 12 informal complaints. The
number of complaints under the statutory process had decreased from 212 in
2019/20.

Page 3



16.

A total of 17 complaints were made by children and young people themselves or
from an advocate during 200/21, the remainder were from adults. There had been
a slight increase of children and young people using an advocate over the past
few years.

Two main themes that continue to emerge from the complaints made by and on
behalf of users in 2020/21 were (i) issues regarding poor communication with
users and (ii) concerns about the standards of service provided.

A total of 445 compliments were received in 2020/21 compared with 153 in
2019/20 and 78 in 2018/19. Themes from compliments were predominantly
around the good standard of practice received from individual social workers and
the overall standard of service received from teams. It was not currently possible
to distinguish between compliments from children and young people themselves,
or carers, or staff without manually going through every compliment. A selection of
compliments from children and young people and families were included in the
appendix to the report.

Members noted that the majority of complaints were made by adults and
guestioned whether the voices of looked after children were being adequately
captured. Officers indicated that work was currently underway with the
Participation Team to look at making the complaints literature and the complaints
process more child friendly and more accessible. As part of this work, there was
an expectation that leaflets would be produced in a number of different languages
and be available online. Progress on this work would be reported to the Corporate
Parenting Board.

Members also questioned how the level of complaints received by the children’s
services department compared to other departments. It was reported that it would
be difficult to compare as the Council has a statutory duty to have a system in
place for receiving representations by, or on behalf of, children who use our
services. And the level of support given to administer the system reflected this.
And whilst there were existing processes in place to deal with complaints across
the council, these were not being used consistently.

Work was currently underway to develop a corporate complaints function, a
standard system which would result in a more transparent and streamlined
function for all departments to utilise.

In response to questions on whether the system recorded and had trigger points
on the number of complaints attributable to individual members of staff, officers
indicated that at present the system did not capture this level of detail; however,
this would be raised with relevant operational leads.

RESOLVED that, the Cabinet Member approves the publication of the Annual
Report in relation to complaints and representations in Children’s Services
in 2020/21.

Outstanding Issues Report

There were no outstanding issues.

—2_

Page 4



17. Any Other Business

There were no other items of business.

(Meeting closed at 10.45 am)

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

-
L/
7

Coventry City Council

Public report
Cabinet Member Report

Cabinet Member for Children and Young People 11 July 2023

Name of Cabinet Member:
Cabinet Member for Children and Young People — Councillor Seaman

Director approving submission of the report:
Director of Children’s Services

Ward(s) affected:
All

Title:
Children’s Services Comments, Compliments and Complaints Annual Report 2021/22

Is this a key decision?
No

Executive summary:

There is a statutory duty for the Council to have a system for receiving representations by, or on
behalf of, children who use the social care services they provide or commission; and for the
Council to produce an annual report about the operation of the complaints procedure.

This report sets out the details of the comments, compliments and complaints for Children’s
Services in 2021/22. 1t highlights the themes that arise from them and the learning and service
improvements that have resulted from the feedback received.

Recommendations:
The Cabinet Member is recommended to:
(1) Approve publication of the annual report in relation to complaints and representations in
children’s services in 2021/22.

List of appendices included:
Appendix | — Children’s services complaints and representations annual report 2021/22
Appendix Il — Coventry City Council Complaints Handling Guidance

Background papers:
None

Other useful documents
Young people's guide to making a social care complaint
https://www.coventry.qov.uk/info/37/childrens social care/625/

Complaints Managers' Group (May 2016) Good Practice guidance for handling complaints
concerning adults and children social care services https://www.adass.org.uk/media/5360/good-
practice-guidance-final-09062016.pdf

Page 7


http://www.coventry.gov.uk/infoandstats/
https://edemocracy.coventry.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=171
https://edemocracy.coventry.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=171
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/info/7/councillors_and_mps/484/the_cabinet/5
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/childrenssocialcare/
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/info/37/childrens_social_care/625/
https://www.adass.org.uk/media/5360/good-practice-guidance-final-09062016.pdf
https://www.adass.org.uk/media/5360/good-practice-guidance-final-09062016.pdf
http://www.coventry.gov.uk/infoandstats/
http://www.coventry.gov.uk/infoandstats/

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Guidance for bodies in our jurisdiction to
support good complaint handling https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/advice-and-
guidance/quidance-notes

Department for Education (September 2006) statutory guidance for local authority children’s
services on representations and complaints procedures
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/childrens-social-care-getting-the-best-from-

complaints

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?
No

Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or
other body?
No

Will this report go to Council?
No

Page 8


https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/advice-and-guidance/guidance-notes
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/advice-and-guidance/guidance-notes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/childrens-social-care-getting-the-best-from-complaints
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/childrens-social-care-getting-the-best-from-complaints

Report title:
Children’s services comments, compliments and complaints annual report 2021/22

1
11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

25

2.6

2.7

3.1

4.1

Context (or background)

There is a statutory duty for the Council to have a system for receiving representations by,
or on behalf of, children who use the social care services they provide or commission; and
for the Council to produce an annual report about the operation of the complaints
procedure.

This report sets out the details of the comments, compliments and complaints for children’s
services in 2020/21. 1t highlights the themes that arise from them and the learning and
service improvements that have resulted from the feedback received.

Options considered and recommended proposal

Between 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022, there were 235 statutory and informal
complaints received about children's services. That is, 177 statutory complaints, 18
corporate complaints and 40 informal complaints. The number of complaints under the
statutory process have shown a decrease from 157 in 2020/21 and we received 212 in
2019/20.

502 compliments were received in the year 2021/22 compared with 445 in 2020/21 and
153 in 2019/20.

23 complaints were made by children and young people themselves or from an advocate in
the year 2021/22, the remainder were from adults. There has been an increase of children
and young people using an advocate over the past few years — 17 during 2020/21,
compared to 17 in 2019/20.

Two main themes continue to be identified as arising from the complaints by and on behalf
of users in 2021/22: issues regarding poor communication with users; and concerns about
the standards of service provided.

Themes from compliments were predominantly around the good standard of practice
received from individual social workers and the overall standard of service received from
teams. It is not currently possible to distinguish between compliments from children and
young people themselves, or carers, or staff without manually going through every
compliment. A selection of compliments from children and young people and families have
been included in the appendix.

Appendix | sets out the children’s services comments, compliments and complaints annual
report for 2020/21, highlighting trends and the themes that has arisen from complaints and
the learning and service improvements that have resulted from the feedback received.
Appendix Il sets out the Council’s guidance for handling complaints.

Results of consultation undertaken

None identified or undertaken.

Timetable for implementing this decision

Areas for development and improvement have been included within the divisional and
relevant team plans for implementation in 2020/21.

Page 9



5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Comments from the Chief Operating Officer (Section 151 Officer) and Chief Legal
Officer

Financial implications

There are no direct financial implications associated with this report. Financial remedies
resulting from any complaints are paid out of service budgets. All complaints relating to
financial issues were investigated and rectified accordingly.

Legal implications

This report meets the legal requirement for the Council to monitor arrangements made in
accordance with regulations by keeping a record of each representation received and
compiling a report every 12 months on the operation of the procedure.

Other implications

How will this contribute to achievement of the Council Plan?

This annual report sets out the progress made by the service towards the Council Plan
vision to be locally committed, by improving the quality of life for Coventry people, by
contributing to the priority to protect our most vulnerable people. Children, young people
and others acting on their behalf are encouraged to report any concerns about the care and
services they are receiving so that these can be addressed quickly.

How is risk being managed?
There are reputational as well as financial risks when things go wrong. It is, therefore,
important that the Council takes action and learns from the outcome of complaints.

What is the impact on the organisation?

The co-ordination and management of complaints involves considerable officer time.
Therefore, where things have gone wrong, it is important for the Council to put things right,
learn from the experience and make the necessary improvements. The feedback that is
received from complaints and other representations is reported to managers on a regular
basis to inform service planning and improvements.

Equalities and equality and consultation analyses (ECA)

ECAs have been built into the delivery of work in children’s services. As part of continuous
improvement, the service will continue to review the integration of equality and diversity into
operational practice and performance monitoring.

The complaints officer will collect data on complainants by protected characteristics such
as ethnicity, sex and disability status from 2020/21 onwards. This will enable the Council to
identify if its complaints policy is operating as intended, eliminate discrimination and
advance equality of opportunity in line with the public sector equality duty.

Implications for (or impact on) climate change and the environment
None

Implications for partner organisations?

Children’s services may be delivered in-house, or by external agencies for instance partner
organisations commissioned by the local authority. The responsibility remains with the
Council even when services are delivered by external agencies or partner organisations.
Therefore, it is important for the Council and partner organisations to learn from the
experience when things go wrong, and work together to make the necessary
improvements.

Page 10



Report author(s):

Name and job title:

llius Ahmed

Complaints Officer

Eve Sanderson

LGSCO Link Officer

John Stewart

Complaints Administrator

Contact:

CLYPCustomerRelations@coventry.gov.uk

Enquiries should be directed to the above person.

27/06/2023 08:27:45

Contributor/ Title Service Date doc Date response
approver name sent out received or
approved
Contributors:
Neil Macdonald | Strategic Lead — Quality Quality & 22/09/2022 | 12/04/2023
Assurance Assurance
Rachael Customer Service Manager — | Customer 22/09/2022 | 12/04/2023
Sherwood Improvement & Development | Services
Jaspal Mann Equality and Diversity Officer | Public Health 22/09/2022 | 12/04/2023
Chris Heely Strategic Lead — Early Help Help & Protection | 22/09/2022 | 12/04/2023
and Protection
Angela Strategic Lead — Looked After | Looked After 22/09/2022 | 12/04/2023
Whitrick/Matt Children Children 12/04/2023
Clayton
Usha Patel Governance Services Officer Law and 22/09/2022 | 12/04/2023
Governance
Names of approvers for submission: (officers and members)
Finance: Tina Lead Accountant Finance 22/09/2022 | 12/04/2023
Pinks
Legal: Julie City Solicitor and Monitoring Law and 22/09/2022 | 22/09/2022
Newman Officer Governance
John Gregg Director of Children’s Services | Children Services | 22/09/2022 | 12/04/2023
Members: Cabinet Member (Children and Young People) 22/09/2022 | 12/04/2023
Councillor
Seaman

This report is published on the Council’s website: www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings/

Page 11



mailto:CLYPCustomerRelations@coventry.gov.uk
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings/

This page is intentionally left blank



Children’s Services Complaints
and Representations Annual
Report 2021-22

\|
e
1%

r“* P

"'
| B

a
0t
Sl
_‘0

/° COMMENTS(q =
. vk CQMPLIMENTSY 'E
Coventry City Council COMPLAINTS CQIﬂ']'iY

www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/



http://www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/

Children’s Services 2021/22 Complaints & Representations key

T abed

facts & figures

In 2020/21, children'’s

services received 235
complaints (177 were
statutory, 18 corporate, and
40 informal). 23 complaints
were made by young people;

Children’s services
complaints can be complex

& timescales can be
protracted. In 2021/29.

Com]ujnfsAverae time taken
Stage 1163 7 days

Si‘age 2 13 34 dQYS

8 supported by an advocate. Stage 3 |
The mo ; i ice users’
o Sfl C(‘)mmon things If a complainant remains unhappy Listening :o s::vices improve
people complained about were... after completing our complaints complaints he psnugers identify
process, they may take their by helping m¢ ed. Key

poor communication
standards of service
child protection
data protection

environment

oA

Coventry City Council

that are requir 1/22

: _ complaint to the Local Government changes s from 2
In 2021/22 children’s SOC‘_‘" care and Social Care Ombudsman learning pgl uring effective
also received 502 ﬁomplm:le“:‘ f (LGSCO). In 2021/22, the LGSCO include: ﬂ:: with service users:

i ts were the standard © . . mmunica ' . naging
Crz::rcl:em:;':ﬂeﬁhip about working, d received 13 complaints about d?ologising for m.gtu:f s;sm:nsu?ing
p ; ¥ . . § a 1 ers;

taking a child-centred approach, education & children’s services, They changes in mu:::,umpuren* and

investigated 2 social care that processes @

N esolve issues
. iving fo r
complaints; which were upheld. clear; and 5;“i“ tge first instance

infor mall

and communication.

Having your say about Children's Services

If you have a problem with children’s services or if you are unhappy about something that is happening to you, this
can usually be sorted out by speaking to someone you trust like your social worker, keyworker or foster carer. But if
they can't put things right for you, then you can make a complaint. You can do so by asking to speak to your
Children’s Rights Officer. The children’s rights officer makes regular visits to children’s homes in Coventry or you

can ring them on 0800 0272 118
www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/




Table of contents

1] (0T 1= ] [P 2
AT/ [oTo ] 4 PP PP TP PP PPPPPPPPPPPN 3
== 101 (0 | {018 ] o [ PP PP PPPPPPPPPPPP 3
ST 10 =T/ S 4
FEEADACK ...ttt e e e et a e e e 5
Yo 1Y/ Lo T YA P PP PP PPPPPPPPPPP 6
GO INES - 6
SEALULONY COMPIAINTS ... e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaaaas 6
RESOIUtION Of COMPIAINTS......cciiiiiie e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e ettt eaeeaeeeeesrnrannns 7
LIS LT TP PP P PP PP PPPPPP 9
o [V 71 PP URUPPPPRRP 10
(@0 ] o 00 Y0 =1 o HO TP TP TPPPRTTTP 12
(070 3310 1TCT 01 £ T PP PP 12
GO D I EIIES L. 12
Service improvements and [€arniNg POINTS .......coooii oo 15
Vgt T a1 {0] g a T o] o PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPP 24

Welcome

Welcome to the 2021/22 complaints and representations annual report. As part of the Council’s commitment to
openness, quality assurance, service development and listening and learning from service users, this report
provides summary information from comments, compliments and complaints received under the statutory
procedures in relation to children’s services provided by or commissioned by Coventry City Council for the year
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022.

Background

Local Authorities are required by law (Children Act 1989, plus subsequent changes including the Local Authority
Social Services Complaints Regulations (1990) as a result of the Adoption and Children Act 2002 and the Health
and Social Care (Community Health and Standards) Act 2003) to have a system for receiving representations
made by or on behalf of children who use the Children’s Services they provide or commission. These include
social work services, residential care, fostering, adoption and the provision of support to families, children with
disabilities and young people in trouble with the law. Representations are defined as comments, compliments
and complaints. Local Authorities are required by law to appoint a complaints officer to oversee all aspects of
the procedure.

Some complaints received do not meet the criteria to be dealt with under the statutory procedure. When this is
the case, these are registered under the Council's corporate complaints procedure. The arrangements for
handling these complaints are different from the statutory process in terms of timescales and the independence
of the people who investigate and review the complaints. Children Services has a nominated officer assigned to
the management of representations from children and others who present feedback on children’s services.

3 Page 15



The purpose of the comments, compliments and complaints system is to ensure that: the views and experiences
of people who use services are heard; positive feedback is used to develop services and acknowledge good
practice; things that have gone wrong are put right; the organisation learns from both positive and negative
feedback; and the organisation sustains its focus on service users / customers / citizens.

Particular reference is made to the range of representations received and responses to them, and specific trends
and issues that emerged in the reporting period.

Summary

In 2021/22 children’s services completed 28,103 contacts and received 4,987 referrals. This compares to 25,875 and
5,754 in 2020/21. As of 31 March 2022, there were 3,307 referrals open to children’s services, compared to 3,640 a
year ago.

The total number of statutory and informal complaints received about children’s services in 2021/22 was 235
compared to 157 received in 2020/21. The 235 complaints received consist of 177 statutory complaints, 18
corporate complaints and 40 informal complaints. The number of complaints under the statutory process has
increased from 157 received in 2020/21, and we received 212 in 2019/20 and 142 in 2018/19.

22 complaints were made by children and young people themselves or from an advocate complaining on behalf
of a child; the remainder were from adults. There has been an increase in the number of children or young people
using an advocate to make a complaint — 14 complaints received during 2021/22 compared to 8 in 2020/21, 13
in 2019/20 and 11 in 2018/19

Two main themes could be identified as arising from the complaints by and on behalf of users in 2021/22: issues
regarding poor communication with users; and concerns about the standards of service provided.

Themes from compliments were predominantly around the good standard of practice received from individual
social workers and the overall standard of service received from teams.

Description of Complaint Types

Coventry City Council’'s complaints policy sets out how individual members of the public can complain to the
Council, as well as how the Council handle compliments, comments and complaints.

Informal

Where possible, complaints should be resolved informally. The complaint is usually sent to a Team Manager to
make contact with the individual to discuss their concerns to ensure a resolve can be actioned as soon as possible

If this is not possible, complainants can formally complain to the Council. Informal matters can also be related to
concerns that require resolution or follow up investigation outside of the formal process.

Statutory
Complaints about Children’s Services follow the statutory process if they are not able to be resolved informally.
Complaints that fall under the Statutory complaints process are complaints made by children, young people, parents
and carers.

All other complaints relating to Council services are dealt with by the corporate complaints policy.

Corporate
A Corporate complaint example would be as follows: When a member of the public who is not a service user or a
holder of parental responsibility for a young person request that their concerns are investigated formally.

Page 16 4



Feedback

Promoting feedback

Comments, compliments and complaints can tell the Council a great deal about the service users' experiences
of service delivery, professional practice and the outcome of management decisions. Children’s services
welcome this feedback and encourages children, their advocates and anyone who uses the service or who is
affected by it, to make their views known.

Where possible, issues/complaints should be handled at the point of delivery. It is when a person feels that they
are still not satisfied, then it is recorded as a formal complaint and investigated as such. The length of time to
investigate and resolve complaints depends on their complexity. Where there are particular complexities that will
require an elongated period of investigation, a timescale is agreed with the complainant.

Providing feedback

People can provide feedback directly to the service or team; to customer services; or to the Complaints Officer.
Further information about how to make a complaint, access advocacy or support, and the complaints process is
available on the Council’s website at www.coventry.gov.uk/comments.It is vitally important that the comments,
complaints and compliments system is easily accessible. This maximises the opportunities for individuals to
make their views known. Complaints can be accepted through the contact centre via a visit to the centre, by
letter, by an online form or by telephone. Complaints may also be made directly to the team that is providing
them with a service. Sometimes, complaints are also made via elected members (Councillors), the Chief
Executive, or directly to senior managers. Complaints can also be referred to the Council from the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO). Complainants who contact the complaints team directly
are encouraged to use the contact centre to ensure that their complaint can be processed efficiently.

In 2021/22, the majority of complainants chose to make a complaint via email or through the contact centre.

5 Page 17


http://www.coventry.gov.uk/comments

Advocacy

Of particular importance is the need to inform children of their opportunity to make representations and to find
methods they can easily use. There have been 23 complaints from children and young people themselves this
year, compared to 17 last year. Work has taken place with Barnardo’s advocacy service to ensure that more
feedback is received from children and young people.

Since 1st April 2004, the Advocacy Services and Representations Regulations 2004, have required councils to
make arrangements for the provision of advocacy to children and young people making representations under
the Children Act 1989. Of the 23 children and young people making complaints during the year, 14 used an
advocate to support them in making their complaint (this also includes 1 complaint where an advocate was used
on behalf of an adult and their child). Since April 2006, the Council has commissioned Barnardo’s to provide an
advocacy service.

Complaints

The Council received 177 statutory children’s services complaints. It also dealt with 18 corporate complaints and
40 informal.

The table below indicates how the complaint was received:

Method Number of complaints
Email 141
Online form/ 89
Contact Centre
Letter 4
Telephone 1

Note: table above includes non-statutory and informal issues. Not knowns excluded.

Statutory complaints

177 statutory complaints were received about children’s services in 2021/22. This compares to 141 in 2020/21.

Statutory complaints overtime
180
160

140

12

10
8
6
4
2

RSO
q/Q Q

o O O o o o o

>

\ r\r\ (1/
Q>"b\b<\03\%\’\\<b\%\©
N S S S S S S

S S S S S S S S

Page 18 6



Listening to service users' complaints helps services improve by helping managers identify changes that are
required. When complaints are received, they are reviewed to see if the concerns can be resolved informally in
the first instance. The statutory procedures offer a three-stage process, and the corporate procedures offer a
two-stage process, both of which aim to provide a satisfactory resolution to any complaint, preferably as quickly
as possible.

The table below sets out the number of complaints in 2021/22 by resolution. The majority of complaints were either
Partially Upheld or Withdrawn by the complainant or include concerns relating to ongoing court cases.

Statutory complaints by upheld status

Status Number of complaints | %
Upheld 11 6
Partly upheld 56 31
Not upheld 41 23
Complaint withdrawn by complainant 65 38
Still Open 4 2
Total 177

Statutory complaints by team

The below table shows a breakdown figure of number of complaints received per team in 2021/22.

Team Complaints
Through Care 29
Team West 30
Children’s Disability Team 5
Looked After Children 30
Team South 14
Team East 23
Team Central 20
Team Complaints
Fostering & adoption 2
MASH 10
Quality & Assurance 5
Social Work Academy 5
Early Help (Team Central) 1
Early Help (Team East) 3
Youth Offending Services 0
Total 177

Resolution of complaints

Local resolution (Stage 1)

The service aims to resolve concerns, whenever possible informally or at Stage 1. At this stage, the allocated
manager (usually the manager responsible for the service being complained about) will identify what is needed
so that the complainant feels able to continue to work with the service. Examples of the types of resolutions offered
can be found later in this report.

There were 177 statutory complaints, of which 163 were resolved at Stage 1. That is, 92% of complaints were
resolved at Stage 1 of the complaints process, compared to 93% during 2020/21. Considering that there was an
increase of statutory complaints by 26% compared to 2020/21, this shows an improvement on last year of the
number of statutory complaints resolved at Stage 1. More emphasis on local resolution has been introduced this
year, with the launch of the Internal Investigation Outcome Form, to gather more learning internally to help to

7 Page 19



keep the percentage of complaints resolved at stage one of the process at a high level.

Formal investigation (Stage 2)

In certain circumstances a formal investigation of the circumstances leading to a complaint is a more appropriate
response, although this tends to be a lengthier process. This may be required when complainants remain
dissatisfied with the conclusion reached at Stage 1 or when the complaint is particularly complex or involves a
number of service areas. These investigations are always conducted by someone outside the direct line
management of the service and the person about whom the complaint is being made.

In 2021/22, there were 13 Statutory Stage 2 complaints and 3 Corporate Stage 2 investigations, compared with
9 Statutory Stage 2 complaints and 3 Corporate Stage 2 investigations in 2020/21.

The investigations for the Statutory Stage 2 complaints were undertaken by external commissioned investigators.
At the conclusion of these Stage 2 investigations the investigating officers/persons' reports are read by senior
manager who acts as an Adjudicating Officer for them to consider and act upon before a response is sent to the
complainant. The Corporate Stage 2 complaint were investigating by Senior Managers and not reviewed by
commissioned investigating officers.

Review panel (Stage 3)

Within the statutory complaint’s procedure, where complainants are dissatisfied with the outcome of a formal
investigation at Stage 2, they can request that a review panel of three independent people be convened to
examine the investigation. Review panels can make recommendations to the Director of Children’s Services if
they conclude that the complaint is justified, or that more could be done to resolve the matter, or if they feel the
Council should take action to prevent similar situations arising in the future.

There was 1 Stage 3 independent review during 2021/22. This was the same compared to 2020/21 where 1
Stage 3 complaint was also received. The majority number of complaints are resolved during Stage 1 of the
complaints process and the number of Stage 3 complaints received is relatively very low in comparison to how
many complaints have been received in 2021/22.

Page 20 8



Timescales

The statutory legislation and corporate procedures set out timescales for dealing with complaints at each stage
of the process. The timescales are as follows:

Stage Statutory complaints Corporate complaints
1 10 working days (can be extended to 20 working 10 working days

2 25 working days (can be extended to 65 working 20 working days

3 Within 50 working days of complainant's request Not applicable

The complexity of Children’s Services issues means that complaint resolution can sometimes be protracted, and
achievement of the timescales can suffer as a result. Not all potential delays are due to delays within the Council,
they are also due to the complainant submitting additional complaints or the complainant providing further
information. The complaints officer/team undertakes rigorous monitoring of progress in relation to responding to
complaints via a weekly RAG report which is shared with senior management.

Statutory complaints by stage and timescales

Stage Timescales Number of
1 Within 10 working days | 122
Over 10 working days | 41
2 Within 25 — 65 working | 12
days
Over 25 - 65 working | 1
days
3 Within 50 working days | 1
Over 50 working days | O
Total 177

Average timescales by stage in calendar days

Stage | Number of complaints | Average timescales
1 163 7

2 13 34

3 1 35

The average time in days to complete Stage 1 complaints is 7 working days in 2021/22, compared to

9 days in 2020/21. This is a decrease of 2 days. Weekly meetings with senior managers have ensured that
complaint timescales were maintained despite an increase in the number of complaints and the lifting of
restrictions due the pandemic.

Investigations of Stage 2 complaints under the statutory procedure often need to be extended beyond the 25
working days timescale up to 65 working days due to the complexity of the issues being considered. In these
situations, the importance of keeping the complainant informed and securing their agreement to an extension of
the timescales, is recognised and addressed. Stage 2 complaints were resolved within an average of 34 working
days in 2021/22 compared to an average of 20 working days in 2020/21. 2020/21 has seen an increase in
investigation times for Stage 2 complaints from the previous year by 14 days. All Stage 2 complaints were
responded to within the maximum 65 working days response timeframe, except for one complaint which was
delayed due to exceptional circumstances with the Independent Investigating Officer. This was beyond the
control of the Local Authority.

The stage 3 complaint was resolved within 35 working days compared 26 working days in 2020/21. 2021/22 has
shown on average, that Children’s Services has achieved resolving complaints within the statutory timescale
guideline of 10 working days for Stage 1 complaints. The data shows that complaints at Stage 2 were also
resolved on average within the statutory timescale guidelines of 20-65 working days. Further data shows that
the Stage 3 complaint received was reviewed within the statutory timeline of 50 working days.

9 Page 21



Equality

During 2021-22, we captured Equality Data to obtain further information and a characteristic insight on the
complainants and service users who made complaints within Children’s Services. The below graphs illustrate
the data captured but this does not include complaints submitted for the SEN service area as we were unable to
obtain those detalils.

The below graph shows out of 235 complaints received during 2021-22 (excluding SEN), 111 (47%) were from
male complainant’s/service users, 103 (44%) were from female complainant’s/service users and 21 (9%) were
non- applicable (N/A) as they were made by the public and not service users, therefore those details were not
captured.

Sex

The below graph shows the age range of the complainant or service user. 176 (74%) of the complaints received
in 2020-21 (excluding SEN) were from or submitted on behalf of young people under the age of 16, 34 (14%) of
complaints received were from or submitted on behalf of young people between the ages of 16-24. Ages 25-34
and 50-64 both received 2 complaints (2%) each and 1 complaint (1%) was received from 35-49. 20 (7%) were
non-applicable (N/A).

Age

o~

Page 22 10



Out of the 235 complaints received in 2021-22, 131 (55%) of the complainant’s/service users were White British,
followed by White and Black Caribbean with 20 (8.5%). 12 complaints were received from a Pakistani
background (5%). 9 complaints were from an African background (4%). Indian, and White and Black African both
received 6 complaints (2.5%) each. Any Other Asian Background and White and Asian background both received
4 complaints (2%) each. Any Other Black/African/Caribbean Background, Any other ethnic group and Any Other
Mixed Background received 3 complaints (1.5%) each. Caribbean received 2 complaints (1%) and White Irish
received 1 (0.5%). 23 complaints (9%) were unable to be captured.

Ethnicity

The data captured during 2021-22 showed that 14 (6%) of complainants had a disability and that 198 (84%)
did not, with 23 (10%) as non-applicable (N/A) due to this information not being able to be captured.

Disability

11 Page 23



Ombudsman

If the complainant remains unhappy following the outcome of the Council’s complaints process, they have the
option of taking their complaint to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO).

In 2021/22, the LGSCO received 15 complaints or enquiries relating to the category of education and children’s
services for Coventry City Council. The LGSCO does not separate Education and Children’s Services and do
not necessarily inform the Local Authority of every complaint or enquiry received, so it is unclear how many of
these related specifically to children’s services.

Please note that this figure is an estimate, as on occasion when the annual letter is received in July, the LGSCO
include some other decisions as full investigations- currently, only decisions that were either held ornot upheld
have been included.

The LGSCO undertook full investigations for 2 Children’s Services, 2 Children’s services cases were
Upheld.

Comments

People may also express disappointment, disagreement or observations about services without necessarily
wanting to complain. Feedback of this nature will be recorded as a comment on the Council’s central customer
relationship management and forwarded to the relevant service area for consideration and action.

No comments were recorded in 2021/22.

Compliments

Compliments tell the Council what people appreciate about services and the way they are provided. Positive
feedback also encourages and motivates staff and enables them to celebrate their good performance. Every
compliment received is shared with the individual or team to whom it refers and copied to the relevant managers.

502 compliments were received during 2021-22, compared to 445 received in 2020/21.

The majority of compliments reflected satisfaction about the standard of practice in social work; and the standard
of service provided by a social worker and/or child and family worker. Other compliments receivedand
categorised were about good partnership working; child-centred practice; and the quality of communication.

Compliments recorded include those from other professionals and partner organisations, for instance,
advocates, police officers, judges, schools; as well as compliments from foster carers and service users, for
instance, parents/carers, children and young people, and other family members.

It is not currently possible to distinguish between compliments from children and young people themselves, or
carers, or staff without manually going through every compliment.

Page 24 12



Below is a selection of compliments from children/young people and parents/carers:

| just wanted to give you some feedback of one of your
workers. We shared practiced and | joined her with a
very hard to reach young person. She can identify the

young person if you speak with her. The work delivered
was excellent and | had to feedback the extraordinary
engagement skills she has. It was a breath of fresh air

and a delight to see.

The service user was extremely complimentary about
you and the Skills to Foster course. She said she
learned a lot from it in terms of children’s likely needs
and behavior, expectations of recording and TSDS as
well as the financial side. She said it was lovely to be
with other people “in the same boat” and helped her
feel better about her situation. She also said you were
lovely and kind.

| wanted to pass on that the District Judge shared
today in the briefing how impressed she has been with
you. She said she is heavily involved with the law
elements of the Open University training for social
workers, so has worked with a lot of social work
students. She said you were one the best she has come
across, stating you were organised, professional and
generally very good.

| want to say thank you so much for your help, you
made me feel so comfortable and free to speak, |
was so confident with the services you offered, you
showed me the direct part on the things | was
struggling to access, like the family service and so
on, thank you for taking time to check on me and
the children and always tell me to be proud of
myself. Thank you for all the assistance you gave
me and my kids. | wish to always have someone like
you

During my discussion with the Young Person, they
spoke very positively about their relationship with
the SW and stated that they have done many fun
things with her such as playing various games and
they have taken them out and not just sat talking to
them. The SW said how happy she was to work with
her and that she is like a big sister to her.

Words will never be enough to be able to thank you.
You have helped me and the children in more ways
than one but most importantly you helped me get my
life back which | never thought was possible. My
children have their mum back and for that we are
eternally grateful. You are an amazing person and are
fabulous at your job. Our children are forever safe with
people like you around. | wish you all the luck and
success in your life and career. Me and the children will
always remember you. Thank you for saving my family
and sharing our journey!

| just wanted to email to let you know how amazing the
Senior Practitioner was last week. She saw that we were
struggling so stepped in and went downstairs to wait with
the mother and children whilst we got on and sorted out
placements etc. for the children. | couldn’t have done it all
without her help!

I am emailing to express our delight and deepest gratitude
for the level of support to one of our families by the SW.
She has been so professional when dealing with the
appropriate agencies during 'Teams Meetings' and so
effective in providing the care and support that the family
needs to thrive together. She is approachable as well as
being honest and straight-talking when controversial
elements raise their heads. She assists the mother to
understand what is happening to her and her girls in a
positive way that moves the situation forward. It is a real
pleasure to work with such a true professional and thank
you for providing our school with her support.

| just wanted to say that it was good to have you on panel
yesterday. You always have really good questions that you
ask in a very appropriate way and | know | can count on you
during panel to ask any difficult questions sensitively and
respectively.

I know it is a big commitment to do panel alongside your job,

but you are of great value to panel and a fab panel member,
and | appreciate you being on panel.

13 Page 25



Compliments recorded by year

The below graph shows the year-by-year compliments figures received and 2021/22 shows the highest
number of compliments received in 13 years.

600

500
400
300
200
134 145 122 126
) .ll.8.5 . . i - . I

0
0
Q %) ™ ) © A Q) O
SN NS SR S RN R O g
KOO G S S O PR SR Sy
Vv Vv Vv Vv Vv Vv Vv Vv Vv Vv Vv Vv Vv

Compliments by category in 2021/22

The below table shows the compliment themes

Compliments
Category received
Standard of Service 284
Good communication 128
Standard of practice (social work) | 113
Good child focus 98
Good partnership working 85

Note: totals may not add up because numbers may fall under more than one category.

Compliments by category received in 2021/22

The below table shows the breakdown of compliment received from.

Compliments
Compliment from received

Professionals 191
Parent/Carers 179

Young Person/Child 43
Police/Judge/Legal 42
School/Education 25

Foster Carers 18

Adopters 3

Other 1

Page 26 14



Compliments by team

The below table shows a breakdown figure of number of compliments received per team in 2021/22.

Team Compliments
Team Central 92
Team East 44
Team South 37
Team West 40
Responsive Services 8
Social Work Academy 4
Youth Offending 64
Total 289
Team Compliments
Through Care 84
Edge of Care 3
LAC & Permanency 73
Fostering and Adoption 22
Placements 3
Children’s Disability Team 23
Total 208
Team Compliments
Safeguarding 0
Quality Assurance 2
Children’s Champion 3
Total 5

Service improvements andlearning
points

Children’s Services are committed to learning from customer feedback. When complaints highlight where things
have gone wrong, managers must identify any remedial and developmental action required to improve service
delivery.

When complaints are received, they are recorded on a database and each concern raised within the complaint
is logged under a ‘reason of complaint code’. These codes include main categories and subcategory subjects.
An example of this would be Standard of Service which has the subcategory reason codes service level/care
plan dispute, lack of/access to/eligibility for service and delay in receiving service. Itis not unusual for a
complainant to raise more than one concern in the same complaint. For example, a complainant may submit a
complaint about communication and finance issues experienced during the sameincident, and both concerns
along with any additional subcategories within the complaint codes would be recorded accordingly under that
complaint.

From the 177 formal complaints received, the table below highlights the different types of concerns raised within
the complaints received in 2021/22 under the main category. This does not show the actual number ofcomplaints
received but only the main reasons of complaints data. Currently our system does not capture anindividual
complaint code breakdown of the outcome of each concern — so the figures below reflect the alleged complaint,
rather than whether a complaint was upheld or not within those specific categories.

15 Page 27



Complaint issue/category

Category of concern raised | Number of times raised
Communication 190
Standards of service 139
Alleged Staff conduct 48
Child protection issues 19
Breach of Confidentiality 2
Standard of environment 2
Finance 0
Resolutions

All staff dealing with complaints are encouraged to make any reasonable effort to ensure that the complaint is
resolved. Common resolutions this year mirror the previous years. These are: a full explanation of why decisions
were made; apologies for mistakes made and any distress caused; a change in practitioner, wherethis could be
managed in the best interests of the child; the opportunity for complainants to ensure their viewis recorded on
the social care file; additional monitoring of the case through the usual supervision route; provision of advocacy
to ensure child’s voice could be heard; and to aim to deal with complaints informally in the first instance — this
often achieves a positive resolution in many cases, which in turn decreases complaintescalation.

Compensation/Remedy

The key principle for any financial remedies paid is that a remedy should, as far as possible, put the complainant
back in the position they would have been in but for the fault identified. Typically, compensationwill be considered
if a service user has had to use their own finances due to the delay in offering a service or if their belongings
have been damaged or lost through no fault of their own. In 2021/22 the following remedy payments had been
made, Corporate Stage 2 remedy payment of £300.00 and a Statutory Complaint which progressed to the
Ombudsman and a remedy payment of £200.00 had been provided.

Service Improvements

Upon completion of the complaint investigation, officers are asked to identify specific service improvements as
a result of the complaint. On the completion of Stage 2 upheld complaints these are regularly monitored by the
Complaints Officer and Operational/Strategic Leads of the service areas and discussed within the senior
leadership meetings for regular review and improvements.

Page 28 16



Examples of some of these improvements include:

e To ensure any reports or assessments are concise and accurate with all information detailed in the
appropriate depth and these are completed within allocated deadlines.

e Making certain complaint responses cover all points that have been raised and these are addressed
in a clear and precise way so complainants can see all points have been considered.

e Ensure all information sharing adheres to the Data Protection Act and all training around Data
Protection is continued to be completed and up to date.

Progression Actions
A number of actions were identified in the 2021/22 report. Progress on these actions is as follows.

Complaint Leaflets/External Webpages

In 2022/23 The complaints information webpages were updated which includes an online and downloadable
Children’s Complaints Leaflet which outlines the complaints process and stages. In 2023 the Complaints Team
will relaunch a new complaints leaflet which will be available online is due course.

Complaints, Comments and Compliments Information Hub

An information hub had been launched in 2019 to provide complaint information and processes to membersof
management and staff within social services to support the investigation and complaints process. The
information hub will further develop going forward to provide all information to support Children Services with the
complaints process.

Ongoing revision of the Stage 1 process

All Stage 1 complaints are monitored and managed more effectively. For the quarters of 2021/2022 the average
time in days to complete Stage 1 complaints was 8 in Q1, 7 in Q2, 6 in Q3 and 6 working days in Q4. Further
work has continued in 2022/23 to streamline the process and a more informal approach to investigate
complaints has been undertaken to ensure that, where possible, complaints are not escalated within the
complaints process, and are resolved, if possible, informally in the first instance. A complaints report is provided
to the senior management teams on a quarterly basis outlining the themes and average days taken to
investigate Stagel complaints.

Internal Complaints Investigation Form

An Internal Investigation Form was launched in 2020/21 to capture additional learning and understanding of
complaint concerns to ensure service areas and teams consistently improve their services and implement any
learning necessary.

Complaints Monitoring Dashboard

A Complaints monitoring dashboard- was launched in 2021/22 for senior management within Children’s
Services, to be able to monitor complaints on a daily basis This will ensure timeframe are met and any further
learning captured.

Further revision of the Stage 2 process

There was a slight increase in completing Stage 2 complaints in 2021/22 with the average time in days to
completion being 34 working days, compared to 20 working days in 2020/21. The Complaints Officer meetswith
managers on a regular basis to monitor and manage the Stage 2 complaints to ensure they are completed in a
timely manner. The quarterly reports include stage 2 complaints, the timeframe and the themes.

17 Page 29



Investigating Officers External Web Pages

A step-by-step guide for investigating officers has been in launched in 2022 on our external website. The guide
is to provide support and guidance for investigating officers on statutory, corporate, and informal complaints
and this will be updated and refreshed on a yearly basis.

Complaints RAG Report

A RAG report was introduced in 2016/2017 to ensure managers were able to have an overview of complaints in
their area. It enabled current complaints to be monitored weekly and discussed at Management Team Meetings
on a regular basis, allowing joint working and responses. This process has continued into 2022/23 as it has
been effective in monitoring complaints and any issues arising.

Training for Children’s Services and Managers on Complaint Process

The Complaints Team continues to provide training sessions on all aspects of complaint processes in 2020/21
to all existing and new staff within Children’s Services. Feedback sessions will also be provided on positive and
negative areas of categories of complaints. In 2022/23 the Complaints team will provide a training module for
all officers in Children’s Services on the complaints process and investigation.

Specific service area improvements/learning which have been identified

Children’s Disability Team

There have been two main themes arising from complaints received over the past year in CDT.

The first theme the complaints have highlighted, is the importance of consistent communication. Specifically,
regarding social workers returning calls in a timely manner and consistently keeping families updated with the
outcome of assessments and the rationale behind decision-making at short-breaks panel.

This also relates to the importance of ensuring that there is information available and easily accessible to
families about the amount of short break hours that they may be entitled to, and that this information is shared
with families at the outset of involvement.

The second theme relates to the quality of service delivered by short-breaks agencies and packages of support
being provided in a timely manner. This highlights and the importance of families receiving timely support that
is of good quality.

In terms of actions to be taken forwards, the above learning around communication will be shared with all team
members, as we strive to achieve a consistently good service for all children and families.

Work will be taken forward to improve the information available to families about short breaks and to improve
the communication around the outcome of short-breaks panel and the rationale behind decision-making.

Action is also being taken forward with the Commissioning team around quality assurance of the service
delivered by short breaks providers.

Fostering

During the year, 2 complaints were made in relation to the work of the fostering service. One was dealt with
through the court process and the other related to the training offer made to foster carers. As a result, of the
complaint in relation to foster carer training, the service has undertaken a review of the way in which fostering
applicants and foster carers are supported to complete their training, support and development induction
standards. Group support is now on offer for those carers who would like this and carers now have the option
of completing their workbook either online or hard copy. A consultation with foster carers has taken place which
include views on the training offer. The service is exploring if there are any avenues through which foster carers
could access a recognised qualification.

Page 30 18



Looked After Children (LAC) and Permanency

Communication between social workers and families is a clear overarching theme arising from complaints
received during 2021-2022. It is apparent that changes in social worker have contributed to information not
always being communicated effectively. A range of measures have been taken during the year increase staffing
stability and more children and families are now benefiting from improved communication with permanent social
workers.

The learning from the complaints received will be shared with the service to ensure that this is taken forward.

Multi-agency safeguarding hub (MASH) and responsive services

Responsive Services are committed to learning from complaints. From the seven complaints received between
2021 and 2022, there were no identifiable themes. The findings of these complaints have been considered to
support in the continuous improvement of services for children, families and professionals. It is anticipated that
this approach will support in a reduction of the complaints we receive year on year.

We are working restoratively and welcome challenge, to inform practice changes to better support the families
we work with. It is important to understand the impact of the way in which we communicate with families and if
there are points of learning we will take these on board to seek to improve families' experiences

Responsive Services are seeking to understand the experiences of families and to encourage greater
engagement with parents and children making sure they feel involved, are listened to and views are clearly
recorded in all contacts and referrals.

Quality and Assurance (Child Protection Conference Chair Service and Participation Service) / Child

Protection Conference Chair Service

Child Protection (CP) Conference Chair Service

There was one complaint received in respect of this service area over the 21/22 period and this related to a young
person’s experience of pre-child protection conference meeting with the child protection conference chair.

The key concerns raised were in relation to the interaction/behaviour by the chair, with the young person feeling
they were not able to discuss the issues they wanted to raise or share their views; they did not feel listened to,
responded to, or valued and did not feel there was the opportunity to be seen alone with the chair which is what
was wanted.

The Service Manager for the CP Chair Service was able to meet with the young person to better understand their
experience and apologise for how this had made them feel. Whereas there were some differences in perception
and interpretation of what had happened, there were some clear areas for learning that were followed up
individually and with the team. Agreement was reached about what needed to happen for them and others to
ensure a more positive experience moving forward.

This included:
e CP Chairs ensuring that young people have opportunity to meet with them alone should they want this.
e CP Chairs taking a relational approach with children and young people, creating an environment that allows
young people to be listened to, share their views and be heard.
¢ CP Chairs demonstrate they value young people’s views, and these views are responded to; when the
response/outcome is not in keeping with their wishes, the reasons and rationale are explained fully and
clearly.

The CP Chair Service is committed to providing consistency and quality of approach for children and families in
Coventry and have devised Practice Standards to support best impact and outcomes. The areas for learning
identified above, are incorporated into these standards and the service is held accountable for meeting them.

Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) Service

There were four complaints in total for this service area over 2021/2022 with one partially upheld and three not
upheld; learning was identified from three of the four, with the aim of supporting best practice, improvement, and
development in the service.

The main theme was around lack of understanding of LADO/Position of Trust and related processes, procedures,
and referrals to regulatory bodies from those who were subject to these. In addition, there were issues identified
relating to timeliness of response to complaints, awareness of referral to LADO by those who were subject to this
including support available when additional needs are a factor.

19 Page 31



The LADO Service takes all complaints seriously and learning is carefully considered by the responsible managers
and translated into actions for improvement. This has included feedback for individuals as well as identifying areas
to be incorporated into the LADO annual work plan for 22/23 as follows:

e Tight management grip and oversight of LADO related complaints and close communication with
Complaints Service to ensure timely response and action.

e Ensuring that if the complaint involves or potentially involves more than one department/area within
Children’s Services there is timely and effective communication across these, to agree roles,
responsibilities, and timeframes for response; Customer Services include this information in their complaint
acknowledgement.

o LADO follow up, tracking and monitoring systems have been strengthened to ensure actions for employers
from Position of Trust meetings have been completed and outcomes clearly recorded — this includes
ensuring subjects are aware and supported as needed.

o Review LADO referral form and POT agenda to ensure consideration to any additional needs is included
and relevant actions progressed accordingly (learning/communication/disability factors).

o Deuvise for those subject to LADO/POT procedure and process an information guide — to include roles and
responsibilities of employers/self-employed individuals and referrals to regulatory bodies/DBS.

Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO) Service

One complaint relating to the IRO Service was received over the reporting period and this related to a parent being
dissatisfied with the service provided by their daughter’s Independent Reviewing Officer; the parent was seeking a
change of IRO for their child.

Although the complaint was not upheld it was still reviewed to consider any areas of learning. None were identified
on this occasion, but some good practice was noted that supported best outcomes and impact for the young person
concerned.

This entailed a decision to retain the same IRO as this supported consistency and continuity for the young person
concerned, considered their wishes and feelings and preserved the longstanding relationship they had with their
IRO.

Placements

One complaint was received by a member of public that observed interactions between a staff member and a
child in the community. The complaint was fully investigated and included a one-to-one discussion with the
child. The antecedents to the observed incident were unable to be shared, but it was acknowledged that it could
be perceived that the staff member was angry and stern in her approach to the child. Reflective discussions with
the member of staff and child identified that a number of different strategies had been tried during the evening
and been unsuccessful, as the 9-year-old was refusing to return home, but the staff member used her
relationship with the child to support them to return home.

Work continues to be undertaken in relation to embedding restorative practice and relationship-based practice.

Social Work Academy

The operational teams in the social work academy support new cohorts of Newly Qualified Social Workers into
the service. The Academy supports their learning as new social workers step into professional practice, this
means there is always new staff being brought into the service. The learning from the complaints for the Academy
relates to relational practice and the journey coming out of the pandemic. The learning and development offer
within the service is being developed alongside the roll out of Coventry Family Valued, relational and restorative
practice models. Also, as the service moves out of the pandemic and returns to business as usual, there has
been an increased focus to support Newly Qualified Social Workers to undertake face to face visits, the pandemic
has impacted upon student placement opportunities and the learning relates to developing this practice.

There has also been learning and discussions around the use of social media in the context of professional
standards.

Page 32 20



Team Central
Team Central Between 2021 and 2022 complaints have continued to reduce as improved practice is embedded.

From the complaints either upheld or partially upheld there are 4 common themes:

1) Communication

2) Conduct of the Social Worker

3) Concerns around the timeliness of the assessment process.

4) Engaging with fathers and keeping them up to date with information.

Social Workers are encouraged to respond to families and professionals in a timely way and share information
about the Children and Families Assessment Process at the onset of their intervention. An introduction pack is
now routinely used by social workers when they visit a family for the first time to provide families with the necessary
knowledge to improve their understanding of the work, we undertake which should ensure that they feel included
valued and respected throughout the process. Guidance around expectations of Social Workers is now embedded
in the form of Practice Standards and recording guidance so they are clear on what constitutes best practice.
Training has been provided to assist with engaging fathers to ensure they are included. This is provided as part
of a social Workers induction and routinely monitored by managers. Any complaints are personally addressed
with individuals at the time by the Team Manager. Furthermore, learning from complaints remain on the agenda
of supervision sessions, team meetings and whole team meetings.

Team East

During this year, there have been (x) number of complaints from children and families who we work with. The
themes which are present in the complaints from children and families, includes the following:

The language which we use in our reports and the way in which children and families struggle to connect with
what we are reporting on in respect of their family’s circumstances. Some of the language we have used has
been social work centric and unhelpful and at times perceived to be rude. Families have also identified factual
inaccuracies or misrepresentation in our reports.

The other theme was about the legal basis for a care plan as well as different views on harm within a family
system. Some children and families have disagreed with decisions about whether they should be supported via
a CIN or CP plan or an Child Arrangements Order or SGO.

Other themes have included a perceived lack of support with housing, missing home visits and attendance at
core group meetings.

In terms of our learning and response to our complaints, we have done the following:

. Staff are being trained in line with Family Valued with a specific focus on how we use language. East
Service have run bespoke workshops on language and our approach to working with children and families in a
relational and restorative way. Our relational practice lead is delivering a plan which is strengthening practice
across the service.

. We are working more relationally and restoratively so that families understand the plans which are in
place to support children on children in need and child protection plans and that families understand the legal
basis of their care plans.

. We have strengthened our approach to housing, especially families who are homeless or at risk of
homelessness. We are also auditing children on child protection plans and as part of this, we are looking at
attendance and participation in core groups.

Team South

The South Area is committed to improving our service and engagement with children and families, making sure,
they feel involved, are listened to, are respected using a relationship-based approach. We have embedded a
system where we routinely seek service user feedback every month and, we discuss the feedback in the team
and the learning themes. It is important to us that all children and families receive a good service overall, receive
the support they need and that we continue to listen to families as partners in safety planning to help improve
our help and protection offer. As part of the Coventry Family Valued programme we are also working to improve
our recording so that records are presented more professionally, using restorative language.

21 Page 33



Team West

A review of the complaints received in the West Area over this period, has identified the main themes of those
upheld or partially upheld. These include unprofessional communication, data protection, not involving or listening
to families and not responding to families in a restorative manner. Where complaints have been upheld/particularly
upheld, the learning has been shared with relevant members of the service and discussed within supervision to
ensure that learning is embedded into practice. In addition, the Restorative Practice lead has completed a session
with a practitioner to reflect on the family’s experiences and also met with a family with the practitioner. The West
area is committed to improving our service delivery and engagement with families, ensuring that they are listened
to, respected and responded to in a restorative manner. It is important to us that children and families feel valued
when working with us and over the next year we will be ensuring that responses to complaints are more restorative
as we seek to improve on the service we deliver.

Through Care
The two main key themes from a review of the complaints relate to communication and access to entitlements.
As a result of the review of the complaints a welcome pack has been designed with full details of entitlements.
This pack is provided to all children and young people within the service and positive feedback has been shared
by children and young people that have received the packs.
In terms of communication with parents and children and young people. This has been a priority within the
service and learning has been shared as a result of the complaints received. A group supervision session has
been created specifically with a focus on this area of communication.
The feedback from complaints is reviewed on a weekly basis within the management team and key themes are
shared within team meetings to ensure we have a continued focus on any areas for improvement.

Page 34 22



Children
Services
Success

Summary

We will continue to develop

these forums ang continue

to learn from alj feedback
from children, young
people, parents, carers,
families and professionals,
to ensure the service we

deliver continues to be
improved.

| of

Out of the tote?

235 complaints 163
received ove_ral\,

40 complaints

Qur teams take complaints
very seriously and we o
continue to use Fhese ot
inform our practice throug o
|Children’s services. We ha ey

ctice |mprovement quum ; A oer
Prg ‘ Services Practitioners Jh s
Ch“d;es?der learning and devek:r;:ir:g il
i 'cc:ncludes feedback an.d leaab|es e
th‘&:np\aints and audits, this enN_|Ce U ide
o the sel

i flect on i

Contl.nUOUS\:i |F\(j\le have the same foru;n{:ee
i "::\\Ff):r) mé\nagers, to ensure the s
mon

learning is applied.

Even though the
number of complaints
has increased in
2021/22, out of a
total of 177 Statutory
complaints,
were resolved

at Stage 1

The number of
complaints investigated
at Statutory

had been resolved
informally

Statutory Stage
3 complaints
continue to remain
extremely low
showing majority
of complaints are
resolved at Stage 1

The average
timeframe to
investigate
statutory complaints
continues to be
under the guidance
timeframes

Communication and
Standard of Service
remain to be the two
main complaint concerns
however with the
increase of complaints in
2021/22 these concerns
on average have shown
to reduce compared to
2020/21

>

23

Stage 2 remained
Comparatively low
even though there has
been an increase of
complaints received in
2021/22

The internal
investigation form
has provided
service areas more
insight into service
improvement and
delivery

Page 35



Further information

Further information about complaints and representations and a copy of the Council’s complaints policy and
complaints handling guidance is available at www.coventry.qgov.uk/complaints/.

llius Ahmed

Complaints Officer

Customer Services- Improvement & Development
Coventry City Council

March 2023

John Stewart

Complaints Administrator

Customer Services- Improvement & Development
Coventry City Council

March 2023

Page 36 24


https://smarturl.it/cov-complaints-guide
http://www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/

Page 37

22



This page is intentionally left blank



Complaints
Handling Guidance

Guidance for managers and officers dealing
with comments, compliments, and complaints

z COMMENTS Ve
%// ,& COMPLIMENTSS |\ =
Coventry City Council COMPL AINTS WA T Y

www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/


http://www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/

O
-
®

9
S
>
o)

=

=
c
®©
<

)

=

I
o
&
@

O

Table of contents

IEFOTUCTION .. s 3
ADOUL TNIS QUITE. ... 3
MaKING thiNGS FIGNT ..o e e e e e e e et r e e e e e e e e e et e e aeeaes 3
THE COMPIAINTS POLICY ... e e e e e e e e e e e e e 3
The Local Government and Social Care OmbudSMaN .........cooooiiiiiiiiiieeee 4

Roles and reSPONSIDINTIES ...........ueii e 4
CUSEOIMET SEIVICES .....uteeieeiiteiee ettt e ekttt e e ettt e oo ettt e o4 e s ket e e e aa kb et e e e e bbbt e e e ek b bt e e e ek be e e e e e nbb e e e e e anbneeeeaas 4
INVESTIGAtiNg OffICEIS ... 4
Complaints CO-OrINALION. .........uiiiii e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e ettt s e e eeeeeesatata e saeeaeeesnnnes 4

Complaints Co-OrdiNALION FOIE.........coiiiiiiiiii e 5
L (0Tt ES S 1[0 1Yo = 5

LT 1] To [ 1= o ISP SSPPPPPRPPN 5
The complaints iNformMation NUD ... 5
LCT= 1T aTo [ 1= o T URPPPPPUPR 5

Complaint processes, stages and €SCalAtiON.............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 6
Escalation Of COMPIAINTS........coooiiiie e e e e et e e e e e e e et eaeeaaeas 6
Escalation to the Local Government and Social Care OmbudSman............ccceeveviiieneenie e 7
Remedies, compensation and fiNanCial FEArESS ..........eeuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 7
Learning from complaints: the complaints investigation 10g repOrt............ccoreeiiiieerienee e 7
=T [0 E= U118V 410 11 (o] 1 o P PSP 7

Privacy and infOrmation gOVEIM@NCE ..........uuuuuuuuiiiiiiiuiiiieiieieea e ssssssssnsssssssnnsssnnssnnnnnnes 7

Social care and corporate complaints process flOWChart...........coovveiiiiiii e 9

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman process complaints guidance.............ccocvevereeneenieennens 10

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman process flowchart ... 11

C

@)

VENTRY CITY COUNCIL



Introduction

Aboutthis guide

This document is an internal document that provides guidance for managers and officers dealing with
comments, compliments and complaints. It is to be read in conjunction with the complaints policy at
www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/. In line with the Council’s values to be open, honest and transparent, this
guide is made available to members of the public too.

Making things right

Coventry City Council is committed to putting local people and their needs at the heart of what it does. As
employees of the Council, we work to ensure that people have a positive and trouble-free experience with us in
all transactions and interactions. However, sometimes things go wrong. When things go wrong, we encourage
people to speak up, so that we can make things right.

Effective management and resolution of complaints, as well as learning from complaints, help ensure that
Council services meet the needs of local residents and communities, and helps build a foundation of trust in
order for the Council to have new conversations with residents, communities and partners to enable people to
do more for themselves as active and empowered citizens. A key principle of this is continuous improvement,
and this includes reviewing the Council's complaints processes and systems to ensure consistency and
improve the way the Council serve the people of Coventry.

0
@)
3
1=
)
=
(0)]
=
QD
=
o
=
(@)
(@)
c.
Q.
QD
>
(@)
D

The complaints policy

Coventry City Council’s complaints policy sets out how individual members of the public can complain to the
Council, as well as how the Council handle compliments, comments and complaints. Where possible,
complaints should be resolved informally. If this is not possible, they can formally complain to the Council.

The complaints policy can be found at: www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/. The policy defines complaints as
“any expression of dissatisfaction about the standard of service, actions, or lack of action by the Council or its
employees, which the customer feels should have been provided”.

Depending on the subject and nature of the complaint, a different pathway is followed:

¢ complaints about Children’s Services including care homes and other providers commissioned by the
Council follow the statutory process for representations made by or on behalf of children using social
care services provided by / commissioned by the Council arising from the arising from the Children Act
1989;

e complaints about Adult Services including care homes and other providers commissioned by the
Council follow the statutory process for representations made by or on behalf of an adult using social
care services provided by / commissioned by the Council arising from the Local Authority Social
Services and National Health Services Complaints Regulations 2009;

o all other complaints relating to Council services are dealt with by the corporate complaints policy.

Note that complaints about non-Council services, for instance, schools, hospitals; complaints by employees; or
complaints about elected members (councillors) are outside the scope of the complaints policy.

The Council strives to act in accordance with best practice. This includes:
¢ the National Complaints Managers' Group (May 2016) Good Practice guidance for handling complaints
concerning adults and children social care services;
e guidance from the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO):
o guidance on good complaint handling (for instance, running a complaints system; managing
unreasonable complaint behaviours and remedies); and
o single complaints statement guidance for councils and care providers on best practice in
receiving and dealing with comments, complaints and feedback about their services.

Dacnao A

1
ragt =1

COMPLIMENTS, COMMENTS AND COMPLAINTS


http://www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/
http://www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/
https://www.adass.org.uk/media/5360/good-practice-guidance-final-09062016.pdf
https://www.adass.org.uk/media/5360/good-practice-guidance-final-09062016.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/guidance-notes
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/jul/adult-social-care-guides-launched-to-help-providers-deal-with-complaints-better

The Local Governmentand Social Care Ombudsman

The LGSCO is the final stage for complaints about councils, all adult social care providers (including care
homes and home care agencies) and some other organisations providing local public services. Itis a free
service that investigate complaints in a fair and independent way; and provides a means of redress to
individuals for injustice caused by unfair treatment or service failure.

If a complainant has exhausted all of the Council's own complaints process, and remain dissatisfied with the
Council’'s decision and/or its handling of the complaint, they have the right to take the complaint to the LGSCO.
When a complaint has exhausted the Council’'s complaints procedure, they are informed of this right — and
provided detail with how to contact the LGSCO.

Roles and responsibilities

Customer services
Complaints by members of the public should typically be made through customer services:

Web: https://www.coventry.gov.uk/form speakup
Email: customer.services@coventry.gov.uk
Telephone: 08085 834 333

&
C
(©
ie)
-]
(@)
(@)
£
©
-
®
-
)
=
S
L
Q.
&
o
@)

Members of the public may also choose to seek help and advice from elected members (councillors) or from
agencies (such as Citizens Advice, or the Ombudsman) for help and support in making their complaint. These
complaints should also be passed to customer services to ensure it is recorded and tracked on Dash.

Investigating officers

Complaints should be dealt with by the individual service area in line with the complaints policy. The officer
leading the complaint response is known as the investigating officer.

Complaints co-ordination
The Complaints Team provides a co-ordination function for social care, corporate and complaints escalated to
Ombudsman. The complaints co-ordination function also:

¢ manages the 3Cs Info Hub, a one-stop shop on the intranet;

¢ holds regular meetings with managers and advocacy services to provide progress updates and discuss
cases;

e appoints independent investigators and facilitate service investigations and reviews, in conjunction with
children’s services and commissioning;

e provides regular reports and statistics on complaint numbers, timescales and key messages to senior
management; and

e produce annual reports.

Dana A9
T~

agC =z

COVENTRY CITY COUNCIL


https://www.coventry.gov.uk/form_speakup
mailto:customer.services@coventry.gov.uk

Complaint’s co-ordination role

Process flowchart

The following flowchart sets out how the complaints co-ordination process handles complaints and
representations from members of the public:

Monitor email inboxes and e-post for incoming complaints.

Log details such as complainant, investigating officer and
deadlines onto the relevant database/tracker.

Forward (i.) details of the complaint and (ii.) investigation log
report or LGSCO email template to the relevant Customer
Services Manager / Investigating Officer informing them what they

need to do and the deadline.

Liaise with the Customer Service Manager / Investigating Officer
to ensure evidence collected and a response / statement written.

Respond to complainant and/or LGSCO.

Update database/tracker/log with progress and learning /
improvements from complaints.

Getting help
The complaints information hub

Further guidance, reports and information available for Council staff on the Complaints, Comments and
Compliments Information Hub (3Cs Info Hub) at https://coventrycc.sharepoint.com/sites/3CsInfoHub/.

Getting help

If an investigating officer needs help in responding to a complaint, please speak to your line manager at first
instance. If you need further help, please contact:

Dacnao A

0
o
3
=
)
=
(0)]
=
QD
=
o
=
(@)
(@)
c.
Q.
QD
>
(@)
D

2
rag€—=o

COMPLIMENTS, COMMENTS AND COMPLAINTS


https://coventrycc.sharepoint.com/sites/3CsInfoHub

O
-
®

9
S
>
o)

=

=
c
®©
<

)

=

I
o
&
@)

O

Statutory social care complaints
e Adult social care complaints: AdultSocialCareCustomerRelations@coventry.gov.uk

e Children’s social care complaints: CLYPCustomerRelations@coventry.qov.uk

Corporate complaints
o Corporate complaints: Customer.Services@coventry.gov.uk

Ombudsman Link Officer
e Coventry City Council's Ombudsman Link Officer; Ombudsman@coventry.gov.uk

Complaint processes, stages and escalation

The key stages of the Council’'s complaints processes are as follows:

Type Corporate Adult social care Children’s social care
Stages Informal resolution Informal resolution Informal resolution Enquiry and assessment
Stage 1: service Stage 1: local resolution Stage 1: local resolution Investigation
investigation Stage 2: investigation Decision and remedy
Stage 2: service Stage 3: review panel
investigation review
Timescales Acknowledgement: 3 Acknowledgement: 3 Acknowledgement: 3 Enquiry: 1-3 days
(in working days days days Investigation: 20 days
days) Stage 1: 10 days Stage 1: 20 days Stage 1: 10 (to 20%) days Draft decision: 5-10 days
Stage 2: 20 days Stage 2: 25 (to 65%) days Remedy: as set out in the
Stage 3: 30 days final decision statement
Please note that between
Stage 1-2 escalation, we will Please note that between
always try to resolve issues Stage 1-3 escalation, we will
informally before progressing always try to resolve issues
to the next stage. informally before progressing
to the next stage.
Services All other services? Adult social care Children’s social care All
Recording On the corporate On the corporate system, | On the corporate system, | On the Tracker on the
customer relationship Dash plus the social care | Dash plus the social care | Local Government and
management system, complaints database. complaints database. Social Care Ombudsman
Dash. management portal.
Reporting Quarterly summary trends | Weekly progress reports provided on the 3Cs Info Hub Upheld complaints
and indicators on the 3Cs | and regular progress meetings held with relevant referred to the Monitoring
Info Hub?®. managers. Quarterly trend and context provided to Officer for follow-up
relevant management team and via dashboards. action. Quarterly trends
Annual report to the relevant Cabinet Member. and context on the 3Cs
Info Hub. Annual report to
relevant committees and
relevant Cabinet Member.
Escalation of complaints

If the complainant is not satisfied with the outcome of the investigation, and they consider that one or more of

the following apply: relevant information was not taken into account in investigating the complaint; procedures

have not been properly applied in handling the complaint; there has been an incorrect interpretation of Council
policy, they can ask for the complaint to be reviewed via a service investigation review. The review will either be
conducted by a senior manager of the service or, a senior officer or manager outside the line management of

the service depending on the circumstances.

! This is the maximum extension for complex cases as defined by the statutory guidance.

2 All other services, e.g.: adult education; benefits and tax; children’s transport; corporate, finance and legal; education and libraries (except schools or
education admissions appeals); environmental services (including household waste collections, noise complaints); housing services; planning; parking, etc.
8 Indicators currently provided on the corporate dashboard accessible via the 3Cs Info Hub and the Performance Hub.

C

@)

VENTRY CITY COUNCIL


mailto:AdultSocialCareCustomerRelations@coventry.gov.uk
mailto:CLYPCustomerRelations@coventry.gov.uk
mailto:Customer.Services@coventry.gov.uk
mailto:Ombudsman@coventry.gov.uk
https://coventrycc-dash.achieveservice.com/Dashboard
https://coventrycc-dash.achieveservice.com/Dashboard
https://coventrycc-dash.achieveservice.com/Dashboard
https://coventrycc.sharepoint.com/sites/ProjectHub/PeopleStandProj/LGSCO/Lists/Tracker
https://coventrycc.sharepoint.com/sites/3CsInfoHub
https://coventrycc.sharepoint.com/sites/3CsInfoHub
https://coventrycc.sharepoint.com/sites/3CsInfoHub
https://coventrycc.sharepoint.com/sites/3CsInfoHub
https://coventrycc.sharepoint.com/sites/3CsInfoHub

The complainant will be expected to explain, in writing or verbally, the grounds for seeking a review. With
children’s social care complaints, in line with the Department for Education statutory guidance for local authority
children’s services on representations and complaints procedures, a complaint may be escalated to a Stage 2
investigation or Stage 3 review panel if a complainant wishes for it to do so. When this happens, a senior officer
will always work with the complainant to see if the complaint can be resolved without escalation first.

Escalation to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman

If a complainant is unhappy about the way the Council has dealt with their complaint, they can contact the
LGSCO. The LGSCO would normally expect a complaint to be made within twelve months of when the
complainant first knew of the problem that they are complaining about, and normally require all complainants to
go through all stages of the Council’'s own procedure before considering the complaint. However, in certain
circumstances the LGSCO has the discretion to waive this requirement. Note that a complainant can approach
the LGSCO at any stage of the complaints process.

Remedies, compensation and financial redress

The key principle for any financial remedies paid is that a remedy should, as far as possible, put the
complainant back in the position they would have been in but for the fault identified. Any financial redress
should be agreed with the relevant director, in line with LGSCO guidance set out at
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/quidance-notes. Where a complaint has gone to the LGSCO,
the local authority has the option of suggesting a remedy to resolve the complaint — or to accept the LGSCO’s
recommendation.

0
@)
3
1=
)
=
(0)]
=
QD
=
o
=
(@)
(@)
c.
Q.
QD
>
(@)
D

Learning from complaints: the complaints investigation log report

It is important for services to treat complaints as an opportunity to learn lessons from previous experiences. By
learning from complaints, services can become more responsive to the needs of residents. Upon completion of
a complaint investigation, investigating officers are asked to complete a complaints investigation log report. This
will provide additional learning from the complaints received, for example, improvements to training or to inform
changes to procedures. The Council regularly publishes reports on complaints, including lessons learned, to
ensure that complaints are properly communicated to elected members.

Equality monitoring

It is important to ensure any equality dimensions identified through complaints are addressed and rectified.
Operationally, it is important that equality data such as the protected characteristics such as ethnicity, sex and
disability status is collected as part of handling complaints; and issues are raised to the strategic equality,
diversity and inclusion project board. This will enable the Council to identify if its complaints policy is operating
as intended, eliminate discrimination and advance equality of opportunity in line with the public sector equality
duty.

Privacy and information governance

Please remember that complaints, investigations and information about it are private and confidential
and must not be disclosed to third parties.

Our summary privacy notice states:
We will use the information you provide to handle your complaint in line with the Council’s complaints
policy available at www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/. We may share this information with other
organisations which may include independent external investigators, children’s advocacy services and the
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman. We will only share your information if this is part of
solving your complaint. More information on how we handle personal information and your rights under the
data protection legislation can be found in the full Privacy Notice: www.coventry.gov.uk/privacynotice/.

Dacnao A

C
ragt=o

COMPLIMENTS, COMMENTS AND COMPLAINTS


https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/guidance-notes
http://www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/
http://www.coventry.gov.uk/privacynotice/

You can help ensure that we protect people’s information by ensuring that you follow the Council’s information
governance and data protection policies. In particular, please:

e ensurethat any correspondence containing personal or confidential datais sent in a password
protected zip archive with the password provided in a separately email; and

8 e double-check people’s names, contact details, email addresses, mailing addresses and telephone
c numbers!
ie)

-]

(@)

(@)

£

©

C

®

L

)

o
S
L

(@R

&

@)
@)

rage 4o
COVENTRY CITY COUNCIL



Social care and corporate complaints
process flowchart

-START-
IND makes acomplaint

Is this a complaint about aschool?

Has this complaint been dealt with before?

IND advised to complain
Jump torelevant social care Service to attempt to resolve: " "
L directly to school.
orcorporate Stage 2 process. complaint informally. END-

Is the IND satisfied?

Is this a complaint about adult or
children’s social care?

Social care complaints process:
Stage 1: local resolution

Corporate complaints process:
Stage 1: service investigation

CSD records complaint on Dash, forwards complaint to CO to CSD records complaint on Dash, sends acknowledgement of
record on SCCD, and forwards complaint to 10. receipt of complaint to IND and forwards complaint tolO.
10 investigates complaint, liaising with social workers, social care 10 investigates complaint, liaising with officers and external /
professionals, advocate (children’s), and external / commissioned commissioned services as required; drafts response letter and
services as required; drafts response letter and sends to relevant ccomplete investigation log report sends to relevant manager for
manager or director for approval. Once approved response is sent approval. Once approved response is sent to IND and sent to CSD
to IND and sent to CO with the investigation report to record on torecord on Dash.
SCCD.

Is the IND satisfied?

NO

0
@)
3
1=
)
=
(0)]
=
QD
>
o
=
(@)
(@)
c.
Q.
QD
>
(@)
D

NO

Is this a children’s social care complaint? Stage 2: service investigation review

IND informs CO (directly, or via CSD) requesting Stage 2 review. CO
IND informs CO (directy, or via CSD) requesting a Stage 2 checks freview crteria met and consults IND s appropriate.
investigation. CO informs SIO and records on SCCD and informs
CSD to record on Dash. SIO (a senior manager or strategic lead)
contacts IND and explore if the complaint can be resolved in other
ways before commencing a formal Stage 2 investigation.

Can complaint progress to
Stage 2?

SIO reviews complaint investigation and drafts response
letter/completes investigation log and sends to relevant
director for approval. SIO sends approved letter sent to
IND informing them of outcome and also sent to CSD to
record on Dash. IND also informed they can contact the
LGSCO ifthey remain unsatisfied.

Stage 2: investigation -END-

Isthe IND satisfied?

Can complaint progress to
Stage 2?

CO selects independent officer and informs CSD and relevant senior manager or strategic lead of decision and interview
arangements. Independent investigation undertaken and recommendation provided to relevant senior manager or

- y N N CO writes to IND inf
drector. Relevant senior manager drafts response letter, sends to relevant director and CO. Relevant director approves ";f' desc'sion a;d(i)r:g:gs
letter and sends back to relevant senior manager and CO. CO sends letter to IND and records on SCCD. # IeND they can contact the
LGSCO if they remain
Isthe IND satisfied? un?;l'i‘s[f;_ed.

CO informs SIO and records on SCCD and informs  CSD to record

on Dash. SIO contacts IND and sees if the complaint can be o
resolved without going to aformal Stage 3 review panel. Abbreviations )

CSD: Customer Services Department

CO: Complaints Officer

Dash: Corporate customer relationship management system

IND: Individual (the complainant)

10: Investigating Officer (usually ateam manager)

LGSCO: Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman

Isthe IND satisfied?

INO* Can complaint progress to SCCD: Social care complaints database
Stage 3? SIO: Senior Investigating Officer (usually a senior manager)
Stage 3: review panel

IND informed they CO selects review panel members and inform CSD. CSD makes the necessary arrangements for the review panel. Panel

can contact the review undertaken and recommendations made to relevant director, who drafts a response letter and sends to deputy chief

LGSCO if they executive for approval and copies in CO. Once letter achieved and signed by deputy chief executive, letter is sentto IND and
remain unsatisfied. for CO to recordon SCCD. Letter will inform IND if they remain unsatisfied they can contact the LGSCO.

Dash updated. -END-

-END-

*on rare occasions a complaint may not progress to the next stage, (e.g. out of timescale)

Dana A7

rage =+

COMPLIMENTS, COMMENTS AND COMPLAINTS



O
-
®

9
S
>
o)

=

=
c
®©
<

)

=

I
o
&
@)

O

Local Government and Social Care
Ombudsman process complaints guidance

Enquiry /
assessment

Premature

Investigation

Draft decision

Final decision

Notes

The request will have a short deadline of between 1 to 3 working days. At this stage, the LGSCO
will ask the Council for a copy of its formal complaint responses; and confirmation that the complaint
has fully completed the Council's complaints process. The request will not include any new actions
and should be returned to the Link Officer by the date specified.

If a complaint has not completed the Council’'s own complaints process, the LGSCO Intake team will
ask the complainant to contact the Council. Alternatively the LGSCO will return the complaint as a
“premature” complaint for consideration under the Council’s complaint process. The Link Officer will
send the relevant department the information using the premature email template. It is important to
remind complainant of their right to complain again to the LGSCO when they exhaust the Council’s
complaints process. Following completion of the complaints process (whether it is resolved or not), a
copy of the final response should be sent to the Link Officer.

The Link Officer will send a covering email using the Ombudsman detailed investigation template
which includes the statement document requesting a written response to the LGSCO’s questions.
This needs to be returned by a set deadline, usually within 18 working days, so that the deadline
(within 20 working days) can be met. The response must be provided as a statement, providing
general comments as well as responses to each of the questions. It must also include the name and
role of the author, and be signed off by the Director or a nominated person. Any supporting
evidence must be provided as electronic attachments and referenced in the statement. Any
information that cannot be shared with the complainant should be clearly marked and packaged
separately. It may be necessary to seek legal advice and/or liaise with commissioned services and
partner organisations as appropriate. The Link Officer needs confirmation that this has been done (in
the form of an email trail). If the LGSCO investigator has asked us to consider whether we are
prepared to remedy any injustice that may have been caused — we should comment on this as this is
an opportunity for us to resolve the issue.

Following the investigation, the LGSCO will typically issue a draft decision statement. This will state
whether the complaint was upheld or not, and detail the investigator’s findings and explains the
decision made. At this stage, the Council is asked whether it agrees with the decision and remedy.
This is an opportunity to comment on the decision, and suggest any changes or corrections. At this
stage, remedial actions must not be taken yet — remedies should only be completed after the final
decision. We are usually requested to respond within 5-10 working days. Note: the investigator may
choose to issue a decision as a report (under Section 30(1) of the Local Government Act 1974) in
which case the Council’s Monitoring Officer is notified.

The final decision letter and statement should be circulated, as appropriate, to everyone who was
involved in the investigation and everyone who needs to know of the investigation outcomes. Action
on remedies should now be completed. In cases where the LGSCO makes a finding of
maladministration, the final decision letter and statement is also forwarded by the Link Officer to the
Monitoring Officer. The Monitoring Officer will decide if any further action is required.

The LGSCO aims to remedy personal injustice when its investigations reveal there has been fault.
Remedies are not intended to be punitive and are not just about money: the remedies also look into
the root causes and recommend improvements to systems when they haven't worked properly, so
that others do not suffer the same problems in future. The LGSCO monitors compliance with the
remedy — and the Link Officer will work with the complaints representative in the relevant service
area to ensure that the remedies are completed to the satisfaction of the complainant and the
LGSCO. Confirmation and evidence that all actions required, as per the final decision letter and
statement. This can be as soon as within 5-10 working days; or longer for more complex issues.

10

C

@)

VENTRY CITY COUNCIL




Local Governmentand Social Care
Ombudsman process flowchart

Email from Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO)
arrives in Coventry City Council LGSCO Link Officer mailbox

A

Ombudsman@coventry.gov.uk).

v

Is this a fullinvestigation?

Yes —thisiis a full investigation

No - thisis an enquiry/ assessment

The Link Officer using the detailed investigation and statement template
1. forwards complaintto relevant complaints representative informing
them of the information requested and deadline
(usuallywithin 18 working days);
2.  records information on the Trackerand sets up a case file
on the LGSCOmanagement portal (on SharePoint).

The Link Officer using the relevant email template

1. forwards complaintto relevant complaints representative informing
them of the information requested and deadline
(usuallywithin two working days);

2. recordsinformation on the Trackerand sets up a case file
on the LGSCOmanagement portal (on SharePoint).

v

v

The complaints representative works with the relevant service area to...

1. collect the information/documents requested in an electronic
format — seeking legal advice and/or liaisingwith commissioned
services and partner organisations as appropriate;

2. puts together a statement providinggeneral comments as well
as response to each of the LGSCO’squestions and referencing
the information/documents in the statement; and ensures
that documentsthat CANNOT be shared with the complaint
is clearly marked;

3. getsthe statement signed off by a Director or a person
with delegated authority on behalf of the Director; and

4.  send statement and requested documents back to Link Officer;
and liaise with Link Officer if an extension is required.

v

The Link Officer then works with the complaints representative to ensure
that the response is complete, that documents are clearly marked, and
the statement clearly states the name/role of the person who signed off
the complaint. Once satisfied, the Link Officer sends a response to the
LGSCO with a covering email; files a copy of all correspondence in

the management portal on SharePoint and updates the Tracker.

The complaints representative works with the relevant servicearea to...

1.  collect the information/documents requested in an electronic
format — seeking legal advice and/or liaisingwith commissioned
services and partner organisations as appropriate; and

2. send documents requested back to Link Officer; and
liaise with Link Officer if an extension is required.

v

The Link Officer then works with the complaints representative to ensure
that the response and any statement is completed.

Once satisfied, the Link Officer sends a responseto the LGSCO;

files a copy of all correspondence in the management portal on
SharePoint and updates the Tracker.

v

Is the LGSCO satisfied?

| Link Officer informs the complaints representative and updates Tracker. |

‘ ca

Canthe LGSCOmake a
decision?

Link Officer works with the complaints representative
to provide the additional information requested.

LGSCO issues draft decision statement* setting out proposed remedies.
Link Officer forwards draft decision to the complaints representative

for comment (usually 5-10 working days) and returns comments to
LGSCO. Pleaseremember: no actions on remedies at this stage.
The complainantis also given the opportunity to comment on

the draft decision.
v

After taking on board the comments from both the complainant

and the Council, the LGSCO issues a final decision statement*. The
Link Officer forwards this to the relevant complaints representative, who
liaises with the service to ensure that any remedies/actions agreed in the
statement are completed within the agreed deadlines; and

request confirmation that the remedies/actions have been

completed. Link Officer then files correspondence on the case file on the
LGSCO management portal; updates the Tracker and the PI sheet

with the decision tables. Once remedies are completed, the Link Officer
reports back to the LGSCO. Wherethe complaintis upheld with a finding
of maladministration, the final decision is also sent to the Monitoring
Officer for further action as required.

v

Remedies

The LGSCO monitors compliance with the remedy — and the Council’s
Link Officer will work with the complaints representative in the relevant
service area to ensure that the remedies are completed to the
satisfaction of the complainantand the LGSCO.

*Note: in cases of serious maladministration,the LGSCO may issue a decisionwith a report
instead of a statement. In such a case, the Council’s Monitoring Officer is also immediately
notified, as well as the Chief Executive and the relevant Deputy Chief Executive, for immediate
action and referral to elected members as required.

0
@)
3
1=
)
=
(0)]
=
QD
=
o
=
(@)
(@)
c.
Q.
QD
>
(@)
D

rage 49

COMPLIMENTS, COMMENTS AND COMPLAINTS

11



\ersion control

Document Location
Published location: https://smarturl.it/cov-complaints-quide
SharePoint: https://coventrycc.sharepoint.com/teams/ChiefExec/PublicHealth/Insight/Documents/Complaints handling guidance 2020.docx

Reviewing arrangements
This guidance is reviewed annually with the annual complaints report.

Revision History

Revision date Summary of Changes

13/09/2018 3.1 Integrated guidance, combining previously separate complaints handling guidance for the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman and People Directorate and social care into one document.

04/09/2019 4.0 Updated with new section on roles and responsibilities, updated with the new complaint’s investigation
log and statement template.

20/09/2019 4.1 Added section on equality monitoring.

14/09/2020 5.0 Updated to clarify changes in Ombudsman handling procedure regarding premature complaints and
reflect organisational changes.

19/09/2021 6.2 Updated Complaint, Process, Stages and Escalation table to reflect an informal review between each
stage of the complaint’s procedure before escalation to the next stage.

09/06/2022 Complaints Policy page 3 Social care changed to services

12/04/2023 No changes required

O
-
®

=)
S
>
o)

=
=
c
®©
<

)

=

I
o
&
@

O

r \Y)

ageo
COVENTRY CITY COUNCIL
12



Coventry City Council

www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/


http://www.coventry.gov.uk/complaints/

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Children's Services Comments, Compliments and Complaints Annual Report 2021/22
	Appendix I – Children’s services complaints and representations annual report 2021/22
	Appendix II – Coventry City Council Complaints Handling Guidance


